

### MINUTES OF A CABINET MEETING Council Chamber - Town Hall Wednesday, 16 May 2012 (7.30 - 8.15 pm)

### Present:

Councillor Michael White (Leader of the Council), Chairman

Councillor Steven Kelly (Vice-Chair) Councillor Michael Armstrong Councillor Robert Benham Councillor Andrew Curtin Councillor Roger Ramsey Councillor Paul Rochford Councillor Geoffrey Starns Councillor Barry Tebbutt Councillor Lesley Kelly

## **Cabinet Member responsibility:**

(Deputy Leader) Individuals Transformation Community Empowerment Culture, Towns & Communities Value Children & Learning Community Safety Environment Housing & Public Protection

Councillors Clarence Barratt, Keith Darvill, Michael Deon-Burton, Linda Hawthorn, Pat Murray, John Wood were present for the meeting.

Three members of the public and a representative of the Press were present.

The decisions were agreed with no vote against.

There were no declarations of interest.

The Chairman reminded those present of the action to be taken in the event of an emergency,

### 63 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 21 March 2012 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

# 64 USE OF S106 COMMUTED SUMS FOR PROVISION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Councillor Lesley Kelly, Cabinet Member for Housing & Public Protection, introduced the report

The report before Cabinet concerned the use up to £932,600 of unallocated commuted sums taken by the Council from Barratts housing developer in lieu of on-site affordable housing provision on the former Dolphin site in Romford town centre.

It was reported that a number of potential uses which could potentially meet the Council's corporate goals had been explored. The proposed approach was to use the resources to buy a number of properties on the open market and, if necessary, bring them up to the Decent Homes Standard. It was noted that the properties would be held in within the Housing Revenue Account and so could then be sold to Havering families on a shared ownership basis, yielding a receipt which could be recycled by the Council for housing or regeneration purposes and/or let to households on the Council's Housing Register.

#### **Reasons for the decision:**

The Council's Housing Service had been keen to maximise the corporate benefits of the commuted sums available to it.

#### **Options considered:**

The Council's Housing Service had explored a wide range of possible options in turn:

a) Development of supported housing schemes for Adult Social Care clients to minimise residential placement. The option had not been followed because through discussion between Adult Social Care and housing associations, brokered by the Housing Service, it had been found that it would be quicker and more cost-effective to provide for this client group through other means, notably renting homes in the private sector and nominating Adult Social Care client to existing housing association properties.

b) Purchase of larger properties in the housing market for conversion for use by disabled people / families identified by Adult Social Care's Occupational Therapy team. This option had not been followed because although the Occupational Therapy team was currently working with a number of disabled people needing specific accommodation, joint working with the Housing Service was able to provide suitable within the Council's own stock for these households at a lower cost than having to purchase additional units.

c) Amendment to the Squirrels Heath Gardens (former Snowdon Court) tenure specification. While consideration had been given to

amending the tenure specification for the Squirrels Heath Gardens extra care to provide more affordable units rather than outright sale, thus potentially benefiting Adult Social Care, prior to start on site, the Homes and Communities Agency provided additional grant to 'convert' the proposed 17 outright sale units to social rent. This gave a scheme 78 affordable rented units and 20 shared ownership homes which was considered to be appropriate to the borough's needs. Thus, the option of further amending the tenure was not pursued.

*d)* Provide grant to a housing association to develop affordable rented properties in return for nomination rights. In considering this option, the Council needed to have regard to value for money as this would be an investment taking place outside of existing funding agreements between Registered Social Landlords, RSLs, and the HCA which control the financial aspects of mainstream RSL development programmes. The Council would also need to pay grant at the commencement of the scheme rather than with 50% on completion secured by a nomination agreement. This approach would also see the value of the S106 resources passed to the RSL. These factors taken together meant this option was not pursued.

e) Acquire properties for retention within the Housing Revenue Account for sale as shared ownership or rent. With the implementation of HRA self-financing from April 2012, the option of using the commuted sums to acquire properties had just become far move attractive to the Council. There was now no longer any pooling of debt and so all rental income is retained locally. Thus, the acquisition of units held in the HRA can yield additional rent to pay off debt, fund further borrowing or pay for HRA service improvements. Alternatively, should the Council raise a capital receipt from these properties, perhaps by selling some on a shared ownership basis, the capital could be recycled by the Council for housing and regeneration purposes. For these reason, this approach was proposed.

#### Cabinet AGREED:

- 1. To use up to £932,600 of unallocated commuted sums held by the Council to increase the stock of housing held by the Council for sale to Havering families on a shared ownership basis and/or for the provision of affordable housing to be let to households on the Housing Register.
- 2. To the addition of this scheme to the HRA Capital Budget, and to refer this addition to Council.
- 3. To delegate to the Cabinet Member for Housing & Public Protection and Cabinet Member for Value, acting with advice from the Head of Housing and Public Protection and Director – Finance and Commerce, the authority to decide on the number, location and type of properties

## acquired and the tenure with which to make them subsequently available to local people.

#### 65 CULTURE STRATEGY

Councillor Andrew Curtin, Cabinet Member for Culture, Towns and Communities, introduced the report

In January 2007 Cabinet approved an over-arching 5 year Culture Strategy for the borough. The life of this strategy has now come to an end, and a new 3 year Culture Strategy has been produced to cover the period 2012-2014.

The core ambition of the Culture Strategy is 'to transform lives through participation in, and enjoyment of, culture'. The strategy set out 3 objectives and 4 underpinning principles which outline our priorities for achieving this (see section 3.0 below).

Primarily, the Culture Strategy provides a strategic direction for the Council, but it also provides a framework for the wider development of culture in the borough through partnership with agencies in the public, private and voluntary sectors. The strategy also clearly demonstrates to external partners and funding agencies the key priorities for the Council and the community.

The strategy includes an analysis of the current service and identifies emerging opportunities and areas for development over the coming years. It also includes a high level action plan for Culture & Leisure. Both the analysis and action plan will be used to inform service planning on an annual basis and in turn be reflected in individual work programmes.

#### Reasons for the decision:

The approval and formal adoption of the Culture Strategy would provide a context and focus for the work of culture services in Havering over the next three years. The approval of the document would support the service and wider culture sector to i) access external funding, ii) influence other strategies and agendas, iii) communicate our priorities to the wider public, and iv) provide strategic direction for annual service planning.

#### Other options considered:

No alternatives had been considered. Without these strategies the Council would be disadvantaged by not having a defined focus and strategy for improving the provision of culture in Havering.

#### Cabinet AGREED the 2012-14 Culture Strategy.

Cabinet, 16 May 2012

Chairman